Goddard Unified Enterprise Services and Technology (GUEST) Request for Proposal (RFP) Questions and Comments
With Government Responses

SET A – QUESTIONS

Question 1: DRFP Section M5 [page 120] states: The Government will evaluate and present several cost/price related elements to the Source Selection Authority. These elements are as follows:...

e. The Offeror's RTOs Average Hourly Price of Doing Business. 

We request that the Government remove the Offeror's RTOs Average Hourly Price of Doing Business from the evaluation criteria. We believe that the Average Hourly Price of Doing Business is a more appropriate evaluation criterion for a level of effort type contract but is an inappropriate measure for a fixed price type contract such as GUEST. This is particularly true in instances where technology and outsourcing are proposed to create more efficiencies and reduce the number of hours required to accomplish a task. In these scenarios an offeror may present a solution that is less expensive overall but produces a higher average hourly cost. In this instance the offeror is penalized because it has produced a less costly solution with fewer hours (which comprise the denominator of the avg. rate/hr). See illustration below. 

	Cost Element
	Offeror 1
	Offeror 2

	Task Direct Hours
	1,000                  
	300 



	Total Direct Hours      
	1,000                  
	300

	Prime Direct Dollars
	$100,000
	$30,000

	ODC / Technology Insertion   
	
	$50,000

	Total Cost

	$100,000
	$80,000

	Average Hourly Price of Doing Business


	$100.00 


	$266.67 



	
	
	


RESPONSE:  Under Amendment 1, the Government will remove the Offeror's RTOs Average Hourly Price of Doing Business from the evaluation criteria.  The amendment removes Offeror's RTOs Average Hourly Price of Doing Business from Sections L and M, Exhibit C-6, and any reference from the solicitation.
QUESTION 2. DRFP Section L.14.2(c) [page 102] states "Offerors shall propose a ceiling price of no more than 125% of their RTO Target Cost." If Offerors are to propose their own ceiling price (CP) up to but not to exceed 125%, can each RTO have a different ceiling price? If each RTO can have its own ceiling price (CP), does Attachment C section 2. - PRIME INCENTIVE FEE RATE MATRIX need to be modified to include one row per RTO for the line labeled "Ceiling Price?"

 RESPONSE: Each RTO cannot have a different ceiling price.  Offerors may propose a lower ceiling, which is consistently applied to all RTOs.   The proposed ceiling for all RTOs will be the maximum proposed in Attachment C.   
QUESTION 3. DRFP Section L.11(b)(1) states the 200 page limit includes the PWS. Recommend the PWS, WBS, and WBS Dictionary be excluded from the 200 page limit.

RESPONSE: The PWS is removed from the page limitation; the WBS is part of subfactor C; and the WBS Dictionary has been removed from Section L.

QUESTION #4: In the GUEST SOO, there is wording in there about vulnerability checks and other security related tasking. Is the incoming contractor required or is it recommended to use the existing security tools or is NASA looking for the vendor to bring with their security people the requisite tools to provide the vulnerability checks and security monitoring?

RESPONSE: The Contractor is required to follow NASA vulnerability scanning processes located in the GUEST Reference Library folder 5.2 Vulnerability Scanning
 SET B – QUESTIONS

Question 1.  Is the Subject procurement likely to result in multiple award contracts?

RESPONSE:  The procurement is for a single award.
Question 2.  Please clarify if you need the following in the Price Volume:

a. Audited Financial Reports for the last three years 

b.  Profit Loss and Balance Sheet for the first two quarters in 2008 

c.  Details of Overhead & G&A pools supporting the rates structures.

RESPONSE:

a. The Audited Financial Reports for the last three years are not required under Price Volume

b. The Profit Loss and Balance Sheet for the first two quarters in 2008 are not required under the Price Volume

c. Details of Overhead & G&A pools supporting the rates structures are not required under the Price Volume

Question 3: Section L, Page 98, Subfactor C.

The addition of the requirement for the CWBS to align with the SOO does not reconcile with the cost reporting requirement for reporting at the task order level.  Per NASA SP 2007-6105 Rev 1, NASA Systems Engineering Handbook and MIL-HDBK-881B, Guide to Work Breakdown Structures WBS should be ‘product, application, or services oriented.  Individual task orders will be related to providing technical support, consulting, and coordination for orderly system implementation, integration, and operation of all systems, systems software, and application software, and other products.  While an alignment of the PWS to the SOO to provide the technical approach for implementing all elements of the SOO/PWS, such an alignment of the WBS would require deviation from the NSEB and HDBK-881 approach the would normally be used and not align with the 533 Financial Reporting requirements.

 We suggest the requirement to ‘.. propose a WBS structure against the SOO’ be deleted.

RESPONSES:  Under Amendment 1, the solicitation has been amended to remove from Section L, Subfactor C ‘..propose a WBS structure against the SOO’ and is replaced with ‘.. propose a WBS structure aligned to their proposed PWS’.
Question 4: Section L, Page 104, BOE

The requirements for the BOE in this section appear inconsistent with the 2 pages per RTO which is stated on page 89 Price Volume paragraph (b) and clarified by the answer to Question 98.

Since these BOEs will provide much of the insight to the cost realism, we suggest that the limit be clarified as 2 pages per WBS element at level 3.

RESPONSE:

The BOE response is limited to twelve (12) pages under the Price Volume among  the four (4) RTOs.  The Offeror shall use up to 12 pages to discuss the BOE onlyand shall determine the page allocation for each RTO.
Question 5: Section L-13, 3. Mission Suitability Instruction by Subfactor, page 96, First paragraph—

‘The PWS shall also describe each Offeror’s approach ….’ This paragraph addresses how the PWS will be implemented.  We suggest that it be changed to ‘The PWS technical approach shall also …’ which would make it consistent with the remainder of the paragraph in addressing the technical approach and how the PWS will be implemented.

RESPONSE:

Under Amendment 1, Sections L and M have been amended to clarify and distinguish between the PWS and Technical Approach.  The PWS captures the requirements, Service Level Agreements, and metrics.  The Technical Approach narrative explains how the Offeror will meet the SOOs.
Question 6:

Responses to Questions—Question 60.  

The data for expected annual cost under this contract with a breakout of ODC for the establishment of impact to bid rates was not provided in the RFP.  Please provide this information.

RESPONSE:

The data for expected annual cost is not provided to Offerors under the Fixed Price Incentive structure.  The GUEST Procurement is not a pure follow-on contract.  It is not the Government’s usual practice to provide estimates on annual cost. The Government is unable to provide a contract breakout of ODCs for the FPI IDIQ contract type. ODCs are task-specific, and the Offeror’s shall determine and establish rates by looking at their current rates, Clause B.4, and make the  best business decision to price each RTO.
QUESTION 7.
There are several places in Section L and M of the RFP that seem counter to traditional distinctions between a SOO, SOW/PWS, and Technical Approach. That is, 



( SOO addresses the objectives driving the work to be performed



( SOW presents the requirements necessary to meet the objectives



( PWS presents the requirements and associated performance metrics/SLAs necessary to meet the objectives



(
Tech Approach presents the offeror’s approach to meeting the requirements presented in the SOW or PWS including techniques, procedures, methodologies, innovations, skill mix, toolsets, etc. The offeror’s understanding of the requirements in the SOW or PWS should become apparent based upon the content of their Tech Approach.


While Section L and M largely align with these definitions, there are some statements that, if taken literally, seem to suggest that the PWS should contain more than requirements and metrics/SLAs. Some examples include,


L.13, Subfactor A, 3rd paragraph, “The PWS shall include a description of the techniques and procedures to be employed in achieving the Government’s proposed end results in compliance with the requirements of the Government’s Statement of Objectives.”


L.13, Subfactor A, 3rd paragraph, “The PWS shall also describe the Offeror’s techniques and procedures required to meet the performance objectives the SOO, including the Offeror’s approach for identifying optimum skill mix and matching skill mix to services/functions.”


M.4. Subfactor A, 2nd paragraph, “…the Government will evaluate the Offeror’s PWS description of the techniques and procedures in achieving the stated Government objectives in compliance with the SOOs.”


Please confirm that the content of an offeror’s PWS and Technical Approach should align with the traditional definitions stated above.

RESPONSE: The Government has considered the comments above and will release an Amendment 1 to Solicitation NNG08230770 R (formerly Draft Solicitation NNG08230770J) to provide clarification between PWS and Technical Approach narrative.
QUESTION 8.  Our interpretation of the Government’s requirement for the past performances to be submitted is currently very broad and could potentially yield dozens of projects based on the stated criteria.  As currently written (p. 107, “Offerors and any proposed significant subcontractors [defined as a subcontract meeting or exceeding 5% of a proposed RTO price] shall furnish the following information for your most recent contracts or subcontracts (completed and ongoing) for similar efforts over $3M in value, which your company has had within the last 3 years.”).  Based on these criteria, our team would currently be required to submit well over 100 projects between the prime and significant subcontractor organizations.  Not only is this impractical given the 25-page limit for the volume, it would also be unwieldy and burdensome for the Government to evaluate such responses from all Offerors.  Furthermore, as the RFP goes on to say (p. 108) that “The Offeror and any proposed significant subcontractors shall submit the questionnaires provided in Exhibit B to each of the above references to establish a record of past performance,” we would be sending dozens of questionnaires to clients; again, an unwieldy number for the Government to review once they are returned.  

If our interpretation is incorrect we suggest that the Government clarify this requirement.  Otherwise due to the potential burden this requirement may have on all parties we recommend that the Government consider modifying the requirement to make it more in line with current past performance RFP requests.  Typically, Offerors are required to submit 3 to 5 past (or current) projects that demonstrate their ability to perform similar work on a similar scale.  These requirements typically mandate that at least one or two of the past performances provided belong to the prime contractor, with others belonging to either the prime or to significant subcontractors. 

Would the Government consider revising the requirement for Past Performances accordingly using these guidelines (i.e., 3 to 5 past performances of similar size and scope) for both the Past Performance offeror submissions and the Past Performance Questionnaires?  

RESPONSE: The Government has considered the above.  Under Amendment 1, the definition for significant subcontractor has been amended from 5% of the RTO price to 10%.  Section L.15 Past Performance Volume, states the following:
“ .. offerors may submit additional information at their discretion if they consider such information necessary to establish a record of relevant past performance”; and “..shall furnish the following information for your most recent contracts or subcontracts (completed and ongoing) for similar efforts over $3M in value, which your company has had within the last 3 years.”
The Government requests that Past Performance information and questionnaires be submitted for active and current relevant requirements covering a period within the last 3 years (i.e. September 2005 –August 2008)
Question 9 Was there some particular reason for changing the last letter (J to R) of the solicitation number? 

RESPONSE:  Yes, NASA solicitation number scheme was followed in accordance with NASA FAR Supplement 1804.7102 Numbering scheme for solicitations
Question 10: In an effort to ensure that the agency gets the very best vendor responses possible and as a good faith gesture, will the agency consider changing the due date to September 29 to compensate for the lost preparation time?

RESPONSE:  The Government shall extend the proposal submission date by 15 days.  The Proposals are due on October 9, 2009 under Solicitation Amendment 1.
QUESTION 11 “Enterprise Service Desk/Call Center,”

Question: Are all vendor support agreements in place (i.e., will the offeror need to provide any hardware or software support contracts)?

RESPONSE: All maintenance agreements for current software and hardware are in place.
QUESTION 12 “Enterprise Service Desk/Call Center,”“Provide incident, and standard service requests processes…”


Question: What are the current SLA response time and remediation times? How successful is the incumbent in this area?

RESPONSE:  The applicable SLAs are available in the GUEST Reference Library for the Offerors’ reference. Historical metrics are available in the technical presentations of June 23, 2008, and in the GUEST Reference Library section 4.1.1.  The Incumbent success rate in this area shall not be released.

QUESTION 13 “Enterprise Service Desk/Call Center,” 

“Ensure the software application(s) supporting the Enterprise Service Call Center solution is industry-proven, open, non-proprietary, and COTS-based.”


Question: This statement seems to imply that the offeror will need to provide/implement another help desk software.  GSFC said they were moving to a full Remedy solution?  When will that be in place?

RESPONSE: This statement is not intended to imply that offerors will need to provide/implement another help desk software.  The SOOs do not define a specific vendor solution.  The Solicitation does not state that NASA/GSFC is moving to a full Remedy solution.
QUESTION 14 “Enterprise Service Desk/Call Center,”

“Organizations approach implementation of this process in a typical pattern.”


Question: This also implies a robust configuration management database (CMDB).  Does NASA have one or should the offeror include that?  If GSFC has one, is the offeror required to maintain it, populate it, validate it, etc?

RESPONSE: The use of “ a robust CMDB to meet SOO Sections 6.5.3 and 6.5.4 is not implied by NASA/GSFC.  The Government expects the  Offeror to propose a solution to meet the objectives.
QUESTION  15 “Training and Outreach,”

“Develop and perform timely customer training for GSFC enterprise applications , ensuring the customer’s success in using the applications.”


Question: Is there a limit on the number or “complexity” of apps that will require this service?  Will this be handled on a case-by-case basis?

RESPONSE:  There is no limit on the number or “complexity” of applications that require training/outreach service.  Offerors shall propose how they will handle customer training for applications.
QUESTION 16 “Training and Outreach,”

“Establish an outreach program that supports all aspects of Agency and GSFC IT products and services, including but not limited to, general user security awareness training, system administration best practices, Public Key Infrastructure and HSPD-12.”

Question: Is this anywhere in the GSFC environment?

RESPONSE: Yes, general user security awareness training/outreach is mandated annually. Other Agency and GSFC IT products and service programs are available in the GSFC environment.
QUESTION 17
In response to Question 184, the government referenced Forrester and Gartner reports. If the answer is in reference to specific reports, can those reports be made available in the GUEST library?

RESPONSE:  No, these reports cannot be provided in the GUEST library due to a copyright agreement between NASA and the publishers.  .  These reports will be made available by request, only.
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